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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 81-224-M
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 41-02821- 05002
V.
Docket No. CENT 81-231-M
ALLEN KELLER COVPANY, A/ O No. 41-02821- 05003
RESPONDENT

Kel | er Crusher and Pits
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Ron Howell, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnment
of Labor, Dallas, TX, for Petitioner
M. Mchael Eilers, M. A Farest, Alen Keller Conpany,
Frederi cksburg, TX, for Respondent

Bef or e: Judge Stewart

This is a proceeding filed by the Secretary of Labor, M ne
Safety and Health Administration (MSHA), under section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 0O
820(a) (hereinafter the Act) (FOOTNOTE 1) to assess civil penalties
agai nst Allen Keller Conpany.
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The parties stipulated that:

1. Twenty-one thousand, eight hundred and fifty six
(21,856) tons per year were worked at the Keller Crusher and Pits
and that it was a small mne

2. There were 4 violations in the previous 24 nonths, and
t hat

3. The assessed penalties would have no effect on
Respondent's ability to remain in business.

The citations herein issued by M. Charles E. Price, NMSHA
I nspector, for alleged violations of mandatory safety standards
in Part 56 of Title 30, Code of Federal Regul ations, were served
on M. Herbert Kelone at Keller Crusher and Pits. This was the
only inspection of this mne made by M. Price.

Citations 162343 and 162349

On CGitation No. 162343, issued February 26, 1981, the
i nspector noted: "The work platformwhere the generator was
mount ed was not provided with hand rails. (Trailer) work
pl atform was approxi mately four foot off the ground. Enployee
was on the platformat |least two tinmes a day."

In termnating the citation the inspection noted: "The
el evated work platformwhere the generator was nounted was
provided with hand rails.”

30 C.F.R [56.11-27 provides: "Scaffolds and worKking
platforns shall be of substantial construction and provided wth
handrail s and mai ntained in good condition. Floor boards shal
be laid properly and the scaffolds and working platforns shal
not be overl oaded. Wirking platfornms shall be provided with
t oeboards when necessary."

On CGitation No. 162349, issued on February 26, 1981, the
i nspector noted: "The K406 haul unit was not provided with a
fire extingui sher. Enployee drove the unit eight hours a day."

In termnating the citation the inspector noted: "The K406
haul unit was provided with a fire extinguisher."

30 C.F.R [56.4-24(c) provides: Fire extinguishers and
fire suppression devices shall be (c) replaced with a fully
charged extingui sher or device or recharged i mediately after any
di scharge is made fromthe extingui sher or device.

The parties entered into a settlenment agreenment to reduce
the $30 assessnent for Citation 162343 to $22 and to reduce the
$44 assessnent in Citation 162349 to $32. Based on the
i nformati on furni shed by the parties and an i ndependent review
and eval uation of the circunstances, | find the settlenent
proposed is in accord with the provisions of the Act. The
settl enent agreenent is approved. An assessnment of $22 is entered



for Citation 162343 and an assessnent of $32 is entered for
Citation 162349.
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Citations 162351 and 162354

On Gitation 162351, issued on February 26, 1981, the
i nspector noted: "The cab of K405 haul unit was not kept clear
of extraneous materials. Three soda pop cans were rolling around
in the cab. Unit was operated eight hours a day."

In termnating the citation the inspector noted: "The cab of
K405 haul unit was cl eaned of all extraneous materials."

30 C.F.R [56.9-12 provides: "Cabs of nobile equi prent
shal |l be kept free of extraneous materials."

On CGitation 123454, issued February 26, 1981, the inspector
noted: "Enployee was observed using conpressed air to blow out a
filter, and was not using safety gl asses or other suitable
protective devices to protect his eyes fromflying particles.

Enpl oyee was stopped until eye protection could be provided."

In termnating the citation the inspector noted: "Enployee
wor ks on service truck which is used on a road job nost of the
time. Enployee not on property.”

30 C.F.R [56.15-1 provides: "All persons shall wear
safety gl asses, goggles, or face shields or other suitable
protective devices when in or around an area of a mne or plant
where a hazard exists which could cause injury to unprotected
eyes. "

Pursuant to a notion that these two citations be vacated
because Petitioner could not nmeet its burden of proof. Citations
162351 and 162354 are vacated and the proceedings in regard to
these two citations are dism ssed.

Ctations 162277, 162278, 162279, 162280, and 162344.

These five citations, issued on February 26, 1981, alleged a
violation of 30 C F.R [56.14-1 which provides: "Cears;
sprockets; chains; drive, head, tail, and takeup pulleys;
flywheel s; couplings; shafts; sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar
nmovi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by persons, and which
may cause injury to persons, shall be guarded.

In regard to each of these five citations it was established
by the evidence that there were five different physical |ocations
on the work site with tail pulleys or tail rollers at each
separate |l ocation, and none of them had a guard on either side.
The inspector stated that he calls the equipnment referred to as a
tail pulley in the regulations a tail roller and that he used
that designation in his citations. Since the conveyor belts were
not nunbered at this mne the inspector identified the equi pment
in his citations by the nanes given himby the foreman. Al though
the five tail pulleys were separate equi pnment they were in close
proximty.
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It was probable that an accident mght occur resulting in | oss of

linb or Iife. Two enployees doing clean up work in the vicinity
of the unguarded tail pulleys were shovelling spillage.

The i nspector acknow edged t hat Respondent exercised good
faith in achieving rapid abatenent after notification of the
violations in each of the citations.

Al en Keller Conpany had taken steps to insure that al
pi nch points were guarded and guards had been installed on tai
pull eys in | ocations other than those in which the citations were
i ssued. The nmine had been inspected three tinmes previously and
no citation had been issued by another inspector regarding pinch
points. The inspector issuing the citations was not aware of the
prior inspections. The conditions noted, which were near the
of fice, were open and obvious. The equi pnrent was partially, but
not sufficiently, guarded by its location. Although the
conditions existing were violations of the nandatory standard the
negl i gence of Respondent was slight.

On CGitation 162277 the inspector noted: "Tail pulley for
contractor conveyor belt |ocated approxi mately one foot fromthe
ground was not guarded. Two enpl oyees do clean-up work in the
area ei ght hours a day."

In termnating the citation the inspector noted: "The tai
pul l ey for contractor conveyor belt was guarded."”

The evi dence established that the pinch points on the bottom
between the belt and the pulley were protected to sone extent by
the frame but that a possible pinch point existed between the
pul l ey and the frane.

An assessnent of $44 is entered for this violation.

On CGitation 162278 the inspector noted: "The tail pulley
for screen conveyor belt | ocated approxi mately one foot fromthe
ground was not guarded. Two enpl oyees work in the area eight
hours a day."

In termnating the citation the inspector noted: "The tai
pul l ey for the screen conveyor belt was guarded."”

An assessnent of $50 is entered for this violation

On CGitation 162279 the inspector noted, "The tail pulley for
the return conveyor belt was not guarded. Two enpl oyees work in
the area eight hours a day." In termnating the citation the
i nspector noted, "The tail pulley for the return conveyor belt
was guarded."

An assessnent of $50 is entered for this violation
On Citation 162280 the inspector noted, "The tail pulley for

t he | oadi ng conveyor belt was not guarded. Two enpl oyees work in
the area eight hours a
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day." In termnating the citation the inspector noted, "The tai
pull ey for the | oadi ng conveyor belt was guarded.”

At the hearing, the inspector stated that the |oading
conveyor belt canme out from under the finished product bin which
| oaded the trucks and that the tail pulley was set nore in | ess
in a hole. There was quite a lot of spillage of the finished
product requiring clean up work.

An assessnent of $50 is entered for this violation

On Citation 162344 the inspector noted, "Tail roller for the
short conveyor belt mounted on el evated work platformwas not
guarded. Two enpl oyees worked in the area eight hours a day." In
termnating the citation the inspector noted, "The tail roller
for the short conveyor belt was guarded.”

At the hearing, the inspector stated that the short conveyor
belt was nmounted, along with a generator, on a flat-bed truck

An assessnent in the anount of $50 is entered for this
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 162347

On Citation 162347, the inspector noted, "Berns or guards
were not provided on the outer banks of the elevated ranp goi ng
to the primary hopper."” Elevation on both sides was 0 to 20
feet. Two R 22 Euclid haul units backed onto the ranmp all day.
In termnating the citation on February 26, 1981, the inspector
noted, "Berms were built on the outer edges of the el evated
ranp." The citation alleged a violation of 30 C F.R 56.9-22
whi ch provides: "Berns or guards shall be provided on the outer
bank of el evated roadways."

The evi dence established that the elevated ranp was in
ef fect an extension of the roadway and as such was part of the
roadway. It allowed the haul unit to back up to the primry
crusher and nake its dunp. The ranp was 20 feet wide and 40 to
50 feet long with a slight upward incline. The top of the ranp
was 8 to 10' fromthe ground. Since there were no berns or
guards on the el evated roadway the operator was in violation of
30 C.F.R [O56.9-22.

Al t hough the speed of a haul units on the ranp was only 3-4
MPH it could roll off the roadway and turn over in the absence of
berms or guards. The inspector's uncontradicted testinony was
that a fatality was a possibility. The evidence established the
probability of serious injury to the operator of the vehicle.
The i nspector observed two haul units with a driver in each of
them One of them was backing up on the roadway.

The inspector testified that the condition was "out in the
open." The evidence established that Respondent should have
known that the condition existed. Although inspectors in the
past had not required berns in such locations this particular



el evated ranp was not there at the tinme of those inspections.
Under the circunstances the negligence of Respondent was
noder at e.



~612

The i nspector acknow edged that Respondent denonstrated good
faith in rapidly abating the condition after the citation was
i ssued.

An assessnent in the anount of $50 is entered for this
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 162348

On CGitation 162348 the inspector noted "Access to the cab of
K 430 haul unit was not maintained in a safe condition. Bottom
step was bent and broke | oose on one side.”" In termnating the
citation the inspector noted "Access to the cab of K 430 hau
unit was repaired in good condition."

The citation alleged a violation of 30 C.F.R 56.11-1 which
provi des that "Safe neans of access shall be provided and
mai ntai ned to all working places.”

The step was bent and conpletely broken on one of the hau
units. There were two neans of access to the unit. The
defective step was at the front of the haul unit. The step on
the side was in good condition. The haul unit was not running at
the tine of the citation but it had previously been operated and
remai ned avail able for use. Since one of the neans of access to
the haul unit was not maintained in a safe condition and there
was nothing to prevent the step from being used the condition was
in violation of 30 C.F.R 56.11-1. Equi pnent need not be
actually in use for there to be a violation: See Eastern
Associ ated Coal Corporation, 1 FVMSHRC 1473, 1979; CCH OSHD par.
23,980 (1979).

The probability that the driver of the truck, the only
person exposed to the unsafe condition, would be injured is
est abl i shed by the evidence. The inspector testified that if the
other end of the rung about 18 to 20 inches off the ground cane
loose it could result in an injured | eg perhaps causing | ost
time.

The haul unit operates in rocky areas and the stock pile can
readi ly break or damage the steps. The inspector acknow edged
that there was a possibility that the Respondent did not know of
this condition under the circunstances even though there was a
requi renent that the equi pnent operator inspect self-propelled
equi prent before it is operated. Negligence on the part of the
operat or was established.

The i nspector acknow edged that the operator denonstrated
good faith in abating the condition by rapidly repairing the
steps after the citation was issued.

An assessnent in the anount of $36 is entered for this
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 162350



On CGitation 162350 the inspector noted "Fire extinguisher in
the cab of K 405 haul unit was not replaced with a fully charged
ext i ngui sher after
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bei ng di scharged. Enpl oyee drove the unit eight hours a day."” In
termnating the citation the inspector noted "The K 405 haul unit
was provided with a fully charged fire extinguisher.” The

citation alleged a violation of 30 CF. R 56.4-24(c) which
provi des:

Fire extinguishers and fire suppression devices shal
be (c) replaced with a fully charged extingui sher or
device or recharged i medi ately, after any discharge is
made fromthe extingui sher or device

The inspector found the fire extingui sher discharged but he
testified that he did not remenber how he determ ned that the
fire extinguisher was in a discharged condition. He also stated
that he woul d not have issued a citation if there had been a
record showi ng that the extinguisher had been inspected recently.
M. Eilers testified for Respondent that the device was a 5 pound
fire extinguisher with a gauge. Although the inspector did not
renenber the gauge or how he deternined the di scharged condition
his testinmony was adequate to establish the existence of the
condi tion. The evidence was not rebutted. Since the record
establ i shes that the discharged extingui sher was not recharged or
repl aced as required, the operator is in violation of 30 C F.R
56. 4- 24(c).

One enpl oyee was exposed to a burn hazard resulting fromthe
condition. There were other fire extinguishers in various
| ocations around the crusher site easily accessible to the hau
unit operators. It is inprobable that a person would be injured
as a result of the condition.

The inspector testified that the operator should have known
of the condition if the required safety checks were nmade. M.
Eilers testified that the extinguishers becone di scharged by
vi bration of the haul units. He requires haul unit operators to
report discharged fire extinguishers and he nakes persona
i nspections of the fire haul units and extinguishers. The
foreman told the inspector that undoubtedly in norning they had
left sone of the fire extinguishers behind and that they would be
on the operation shortly. Mbderate negligence is established by
the record.

The operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
condition after issuance of the citation

An assessnent in the anobunt of $20 is entered for the
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 162353

On CGitation 162353 the inspector noted "Fire extingui sher on
K 479 service truck was di scharged. Truck carried approxi mately
250 gal l ons of diesel fuel, 100 gallons of gasoline, 100 gallons
of transm ssion fluid and grease. Truck was operated ei ght hours
a day. In terminating the citation the inspector noted "The K 79
service truck was renmoved fromthe property. Conpany alleged the



truck was provided with a fully charged fire extinguisher.”
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The testinony of the inspector that the fire extinguisher was
di scharged was not contradicted. A violation of 30 CF. R

56. 4-24(c) was established by the evidence. Although the

i nspect or acknowl edged the possibility that there was anot her
fire extinguisher in the truck that he did not check it was
established that at |east one extinguisher was discharged. The
actual presence of an additional extinguisher would have sone
bearing on the gravity the violation but it would not neet the
requi renents of the regul ations.

The uncontradicted testinony of the inspector was that there
was a possibility of a fatality. It is probable that the
condition could have caused serious injury in the event of a
fire.

The Respondent shoul d have known of the condition if the
required preshift exam nation and reports by the equi pnent
operator had been made. The equi pment operators did not report
t he di scharged fire extinguisher to Respondent. M. Eilers also
personal |y made periodic inspections but his |last inspection was
made on January 22, 1981. The negligence of Respondent was
noder at e

The operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
condition after the citation was issued.

An assessnent of $28 is entered for this violation.

Assessnent s

Ctation Anpunt
162343 $22
162349 32
162277 44
162278 50
162279 50
162280 50
162344 50
162347 50
162348 36
162350 20
162353 28
$432
O der

Respondent is ORDERED to pay Petitioner the sumof $432
within 30 days fromthe date of this order.

Forrest E. Stewart
Admi ni strative Law Judge

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA



~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1 Sections 110(i) and (k) of the Act provides:

"(i) The Commi sion shall have authority to assess al
civil penalties provided in this Act. |In assessing civil
nmonet ary penalties, the Conm ssion shall consider the operator's
history of previous violtions, the appropriateness of such
penalty to the size of the business of the operator charged,
whet her the operator was negligent, the effect on the operator's
ability to continue in business, the gravity of the violation
and the denonstrated good faith of the person charged in
attenpting to achieve rapid conpliance after notification of a
violation. |In proposing civil penalties under this Act, the
Secretary may rely upon a sunmary review of the information
avai l able to himand shall not be required to nake findi ngs of
fact concenring the above factors.

"(k) No proposed penalty which has been contested
bef ore the Conmi ssion under section 105(a) shall be conprom sed,
mtigated, or settled except with the approval of the Conm ssion
No penalty assessment whi ch has becone a final order of the
Conmmi ssion shall be conprom sed, nmitigated, or settled except
wi th the approval of the court.”



